


You don't often get email from claire.ryan@northernbeaches.nsw.gov.au. Learn why this is important
 

Hi Lisa Bella,
 
Thank you for your email.
 
We had been experiencing an error in the way our documents were showing up online for
development applications, but this is now corrected. All plans and documents are available to view
online under the ‘Documents’ tab at the following link:
 
https://eservices.northernbeaches.nsw.gov.au/ePlanning/live/Public/XC.Track/SearchApplication.aspx
?id=2560448
 
Please note we will accept submissions after the notification period until we determine the application,
which won’t happen for some weeks at minimum.
 
Kind regards,
 
Claire Ryan    

Principal Planner

Development Assessment ‑ South Team
t 02 8495 6497
claire.ryan@northernbeaches.nsw.gov.au
northernbeaches.nsw.gov.au

 
From: Lisa Bella Esposito 
Sent: Wednesday, 12 March 2025 6:27 PM
To: Claire Ryan <claire.ryan@northernbeaches.nsw.gov.au>
Cc: Aidan Harrington 
Subject: DA 2025/0132 - 37 Roseberry Street - Proposed construction of McDonalds
Importance: High
 
Good Evening Claire
 
I hope you are well!
 
I have checked Council’s DA tracking for the above DA and advise that the DA plan Master Set is not available
for viewing other then in person over the counter. This viewing arrangement is unusual for this DA, and I
wondered if you could clarify as to why?
 
In my capacity as the Director of Milestone, Milestone is currently preparing an Objection Submission on behalf
of ALDI Stores (noting the Balgowlah Store is located nearby) and we note that the due date for submissions is
tomorrow. We were only engaged yesterday and therefore we do not have time to come to Council Offices to
view the DA Master Set. Are you able to send me the plans via a link or via email? If required I am happy to
lodge a GIPA as long as the request is actioned by tomorrow morning.
 
If this is not possible, I should be able to manage as some of the supporting expert reports have some plan
sheets appended (limited).
 
Thank you for your assistance.
 
Kind Regards



 

TOWN PLANNING

Lisa Bella Esposito
Director

Milestone (Aust) Pty Limited
T 02 9518 3666 

au

milestonemanagement.com.au
 
 

Northern Beaches Council

Please consider the environment before printing this email. This email and any materials contained or attached to it ("Contents") may
contain confidential information. If you are not the intended recipient contact the sender immediately, delete the communication from
your system and destroy any copies  The contents may also be subject to copyright  Any unauthorised copying, disclosure or
distribution of the contents is strictly prohibited. Northern Beaches Council makes no implied or express warranty that the integrity of
this communication has been maintained. The contents may contain errors, computer viruses or have been subject to interference in
transmission  Northern Beaches Council  Northern Beaches Council
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Milestone has prepared this submission following confirmation from Claire Ryan, Council’s Principal 
Planner that submissions will be accepted and considered by Council after the notification period until 
the consent authority determine the Development Application; confirmed by email to Milestone on 13 
March 2025.  
 
We advise that our client provides in-principle support for a well considered development being built 
on the subject land that respects the operations of surrounding development and results in an 
acceptable impact of traffic flow without any adverse implications on access to the ALDI site and 
ensuring ALDI’s car park remains available for their customers.   
  
Milestone has reviewed the documents within DA No. 2025/0132 that include, but are not limited to: 
 
• Architectural Master Set Plans prepared by Webber Architects, Issue C dated 12 December 2024. 
• Survey Plan and Report prepared by LTS dated 22 October 2024. 
• Plan of Management Report prepared by SLR Consulting Pty Ltd dated 5 December 2024. 
• Statement of Environmental Effects Report prepared by SLR Consulting Australia Pty Ltd dated 16 

December 2024. 
• Site Waste Minimisation and Management Plan prepared by SLR Consulting Pty Ltd dated 16 

December 2024. 
• Traffic Report for Proposed McDonald’s prepared by Colston Budd Rogers and Kafes Pty Ltd dated 

December 2024.   
• Crime Risk Assessment Report prepared by SLR Consulting Pty Ltd dated 16 December 2024. 
 
Milestone’s assessment concludes that the proposed McDonald’s development in its current form 
including supporting documentation and reports is incomplete and unacceptable. The proposal 
cannot be supported due to the adverse environmental impacts to the ALDI site and the surrounding 
locality. To this end we request the following matters be appropriately addressed: 
 
• The unacceptable traffic impacts of the proposal to ensure that associated traffic queues and 

congestion on the surrounding roads do not adversely increase travel times and thereby not result 
in conditions of service that will act as a deterrent for customers shopping at the ALDI Store due to 
inconvenience and significant delays to enter the ALDI site.   

• Potential adverse car parking implications during the construction phase of the proposed 
development and use of ALDI’s customer car parking.   

• Potential car parking implications during the operational phase of any approved development on 
the ALDI car park. 

 
We raise concern about the following key matters: 
 
• Unacceptable Traffic Impacts and Inadequate Traffic Assessment -Traffic queues will block 

vehicle traffic flows and result in capacity constraints in and around the site. The traffic assessment 
is currently incomplete and not accurate and must be updated so that associated traffic impacts 
are fully understood, and any revised traffic report must be made available to the public for further 
comment.     

• Car Parking Implication during Construction - Loss of available car parking spaces for ALDI 
customers during the construction phase of the development due to limited availability of on-
street car parking and construction workers who will seek to park in a convenient and shaded car 
park.  

• Car Parking Implications during Operation – Employees of the McDonald’s development will park 
in the ALDI undercroft car park given the limited car parking spaces provided (26 standard car 
spaces) and queuing further reducing on-site capacity.  

 
1 BACKGROUND  
 
An ALDI development is located at the property known as No. 22-26 Roseberry Street, Balgowlah (Lot 
10 DP 1233834) and is located approximately 80 metres south of the subject site. The ALDI site 
comprises a two storey building containing an ALDI Store and ‘Vamos Strength’, a fitness centre 
tenancy, with an associated undercroft car park. The ALDI development was originally approved under 
Development Consent No. DA300/2016 on 18 May 2017, which was described by Council as: 
 
“Demolition works, consolidation of three (3) lots into one (1), construction of two (2) shops including an Aldi store 
and signage.”  
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• Redevelopment of the existing vehicle crossover from Roseberry Street for vehicle ingress and egress 
• Construction of one (1) loading bay 
• Associated signage, including an 9m pylon sign 
• Car parking accommodating twenty-six (26) standard parking spaces, one (1) accessible parking space, two (2) 

bicycle racks, and two (2) motorcycle spaces 
• A separate pedestrian entrance with an accessible pedestrian ramp from the Roseberry Street frontage 
• Minor earthworks including a retaining wall along the Kenneth Road Street frontage 
• Two flag poles (with McDonald’s logo and Australian flag) 
• 24-hours, 7-days a week trade”. 

 
The proposal includes the provision of a total of twenty six (26) standard parking spaces, one (1) 
accessible parking space, two (2) bicycle racks, two (2) motorcycle spaces and one (1) loading bay 
accessible from Roseberry Street. Loading and delivery vehicles accessing the site are made via the 
Roseberry Street access point. A dual-lane drive-through facility is proposed including a queuing 
system to accommodate at least 14 vehciles without interfering with parking operations on site. The 
drive-through facility features designated spaces for six vehicles to queue before reaching the order 
points.  
 
The proposed McDonald’s development seeks operational hours of 24 hours, 7 days per week, with an 
average of 12 staff present at any one time during the day, and a minimum of 3 staff during the night 
time hours.  
 
The Traffic Report prepared by Colston Budd Rogers and Kafes Pty Ltd dated December 2024 identifies 
that vehicle queueing will occur from the right turns to/from the McDonald’s site on Roseberry Street. 
One option proposed to prevent vehicle queuing in the report stated the following: 
 
“Remove the parking on the eastern side of Roseberry Street opposite the site (4 spaces would be lost) and provide 
no queueing line marking on the northbound traffic lane in Roseberry Street across the McDonald’s access. This 
would allow southbound vehicles on Roseberry Street to pass a vehicle turning right into the site.” 
 
This proposed option would cause further loss of parking in a street with already limited on-street 
parking availability.  
 
3 ISSUES OF CONCERN 
 
3.1            Car Parking During Construction   
 
The ALDI site provides 76 car parking spaces approved under Development Consent No. 300/2016. 
 
As shown in Figure 2, the entrance to the ALDI car park is highly visible from Roseberry Street. These 
spaces are conveniently located and in close walking distance to the subject site. Further, ALDI’s car 
park is located undercover without time restrictions, which is more desirable for all-day parking due to 
the shading available.  
 
The scale of the proposed development involves demolition works and construction of a take away 
food and drink premise to establish a McDonald’s. A development of this size, including associated 
mitigation measures to the road network (eg new medians and roundabout), will require an extended 
construction period and a significant on-site presence in terms of construction personnel.  
 
Neither the Statement of Environmental Effects Report prepared by SLR Consulting Australia Pty Ltd 
dated 16 December 2024 or the Traffic Report prepared by Colston Budd Rogers and Kafes Pty Ltd 
dated December 2024 submitted with DA No. 2025/0132 have considered the car parking implications 
for the development during the construction phase. As a result, car parking associated with the 
construction phase of the proposed development will likely be located within ALDI’s car park (76 car 
spaces) given its convenience and close proximity to the subject site.  
 
By its nature, the parking of vehicles related to construction activity commences early in the morning 
and lasts throughout the day until early evening. This demand for car parking has the potential to 
impact on the availability of car parking spaces within ALDI’s car park as construction workers seek to 
park in a convenient area near their work site.  
 
Should car parking on the ALDI site be used by construction personnel, less car parking spaces will be 
available for use by the ALDI development including ALDI Store customers and ALDI staff members. 
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The reduced availability of car parking for ALDI customers has the potential to have adverse impacts 
on the commercial viability of the ALDI development through reduced sales and business.  
 
In assessing the current DA, we respectfully request that a Construction Management Plan to be 
prepared to ensure that construction workers do not use ALDI’s car parking bays at any time whilst 
carrying out works on the site. This matter must be addressed via the imposition of a condition to 
ensure that ALDI’s car parking spaces remain available for ALDI Store customers and there is a 
transparent mechanism to enforce action if required. 
 
3.2            Car Parking Associated with the Operation of the Takeaway Food and Drink Premise   
 
The DA documentation does not address the operational matters of the proposed McDonald’s with 
particular regard to McDonald’s staff parking during periods when the car parking spaces are at full 
capacity. The Statement of Environmental Effects Report prepared by SLR Consulting Australia Pty Ltd 
dated 16 December 2024 identifies that 26 standard car parking spaces, 1 accessible parking space and 
2 motorcycle parking spaces are proposed for the McDonald’s development.  
 
Given the limited car parking spaces available within the McDonald’s site and the potential for these 
spaces to be impacted from queuing of the drive-through facility, there is concern that McDonald’s 
staff will utilise ALDI’s car park when the McDonald’s car park is at capacity. As ALDI’s car park is 
undercover, unlike the McDonald’s car park, and does not have any time restrictions placed on visitors, 
it is a highly desirable parking area. McDonald’s staff who are working several hours in one shift and do 
not want to park their car in an open space attracting heat will utilise the all day shaded parking 
available in the ALDI car park.  
 
Milestone clarify that under no circumstances shall the ALDI site be used for parking by staff and visitors 
to the McDonalds site throughout its operation and request that this matter be actioned via the 
imposition of appropriate conditions of development consent dealing with the appropriate provision 
and management of on-site car parking and loading.  
 
3.3            Traffic Generation Associated with the Proposal   
 
The Traffic Report for the proposed McDonald’s development prepared by Colston Budd Rogers and 
Kafes Pty Ltd dated December 2024 indicates an increase in traffic generation as a result of the 
proposal. Chapter 3 of the report identifies that traffic generated by the proposal will have its greatest 
effects during weekday afternoon and Saturday midday peak periods when it combines with other 
traffic on the surrounding road network. The report’s comparison of the existing traffic flows with the 
proposed developments traffic flows reveals the following: 
 
• Kenneth Road traffic flows would increase by some 20-35 vehicles per hour (two way) during 

weekday afternoon and Saturday midday peak periods.  
• Roseberry Street , north of Kenneth Road and south oof the site access, traffic flows would increase 

by some 10-30 vehicles per hour (two way) on weekday morning and afternoon peak periods. 
• Condamine Street traffic flows would increase by some 10-15 vehicles per hour (two way) on 

weekday afternoon and Saturday midday peak periods.   
 
Refer to Figure 3 for a summary of outlined existing peak flows plus additional development traffic.  
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Figure 3: Traffic Generation from the Proposed McDonald’s 
Source: Colston Budd Rogers and Kafes Pty Ltd, December 2024 
 
The peak period of traffic generation of the proposed McDonald’s development coincides with ALDI’s 
peak shopping periods of weekday afternoons and Saturday. The Traffic Report submitted with the 
ALDI Balgowlah Development Application No. DA300/2016 prepared by Colston Budd Rogers and 
Kafes Pty Ltd dated October 2016 outlines the peak traffic periods generated by ALDI customers as: 
 
“Surveys of other similar sized Aldi stores have found peak hour generations of some 160 and 200 vehicles per hour 
two-way during weekday afternoon and Saturday peak periods respectively.” 
 
Therefore, the existing approved ALDI Store and the proposed McDonald’s development generally share 
similar peak hour periods of traffic generation. Hence, the traffic generation of the proposal will likely 
have an adverse impact on the operation of the ALDI Store as it will deter ALDI customers from travelling 
to the store due to traffic congestion being significantly increased and overall capacity constraints in 
the surrounding street network.  
 
We request a careful review of the traffic generation and traffic impacts of the proposed development 
in context of the new TfNSW Guide to Transport Impact Assessment and to ensure that the nominated 
traffic generated by the development is indeed accurate, noting some 20 vehicle movements were 
missing from the analysis. Additional analysis and mitigation treatment options is required to ensure 
the full impacts on traffic congestion in the surrounding street network is understood in context of the 
existing congested conditions. There is concern that the current proposal will result in reduced levels of 
service, frustration and delays deterring drivers altogether from coming to the area and shopping at the 
ALDI Store. We request that revised plans and a revised traffic report must be renotified to the public 
so there is further opportunity to fully understand the traffic impacts and provide additional comments 
as warranted.    
 
4 CONCLUSION 
 
ALDI is concerned that the proposed development will give rise to additional parking demand within 
ALDI’s car park during both the construction and ongoing phase of the proposed development, which 
will reduce the availability of car parking spaces for ALDI customers and staff. Further, the proposal will 
result in unacceptable traffic queues which will block traffic flow and result in capacity constraints in 
and around the site. 
 
Unacceptable Traffic Impacts  
 
A revised traffic assessment is required to be undertaken to fully understand the traffic impacts of the 
development including flow on impacts to vehicles by way of congestion and intolerable delays to 
ensure an acceptable level of service is maintained so as not to deter drivers from using the essential 
grocery retailing facilities that are established in Roseberry Street.  
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Car Parking Implications during Construction  
 
The applicant be required to submit a Construction Management Plan for Council to assess upfront as 
part of the assessment of the development. This Construction Management Plan must include, 
however is not limited to, details of the location and management of parking for construction vehicles 
and any contractor vehicles associated with the construction of the McDonald’s site, including details 
of how the ALDI Store car park will not be utilised for this purpose at any time.  
 
Car Parking Implications during Operation  
 
The applicant be required to submit within a revised Plan of Management for the McDonald’s 
development a detailed outline including, but not limited to, the operation of the proposal and how 
car parking will operate without causing adverse impacts to the ALDI Store car park and locality overall. 
 
Upon receipt of amended development information, Milestone requests that the amended 
information be re-notified to enable a further opportunity to review and provide further specific 
comments to Council on any amended development plans and reports. 
 
 We welcome the opportunity to discuss these issues with Council Officers in more detail. Should you 
require further clarification of matters raised please do not hesitate to contact the undersigned. 
 
Yours sincerely 
Milestone (AUST) Pty Limited 

 

Lisa Bella Esposito 
Director 

 

 




